Collective Agreement

between

Ontario Public Service Employees Union on behalf of its Local 329

and

Honeywell International Incorporated

DURATION: April 1, 2014 - March 31, 2017



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE	
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION	
ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS	
3.01 DEFINITIONS 3.02 FULL TIME 3.03 PART TIME	1
3.04 Casual	2
ARTICLE 4- RELATIONSHIP	2
ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 6 – UNION REPRESENTATION	
6.01 Union Stewards	3 4
ARTICLE 7 – UNION BUSINESS LEAVE	
7.01 Union Business	4 5
ARTICLE 8 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	
8.04 POLICY GRIEVANCE 8.05 DISCHARGE OR SUSPENSION GRIEVANCE 8.09 ARBITRATION	6 6
ARTICLE 9 – WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT	9
ARTICLE 10 – NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE	9
10.01 Pay for Local Negotiating Committee	
ARTICLE 11 – STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	10
ARTICLE 12 – CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES	10
ARTICLE 13 - NON-DISCRIMINATION	10
ARTICLE 14 – DISCIPLINE AND EMPLOYEE FILES	11
14.01 NOTIFICATION OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION	

14.04	ACCESS TO EMPLOYEE FILES	. 11
ARTICLE	15 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD	. 1 [·]
ARTICLE	16 - HEALTH AND SAFETY	. 12
16.02 16.03 16.04 16.06 16.07	INFLUENZA VACCINE	. 13 . 13 . 14
ARTICLE	17 - HOLIDAYS - FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES	. 14
17.01 17.02 17.04 17.05 17.06	GENERAL HOLIDAYS COMPENSATION DESIGNATION OF A WEEKEND STATUTORY HOLIDAY IDENTIFIED RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS PART TIME EMPLOYEES	. 15 . 15 . 15
	18 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	
ARTICLE	19 - EMERGENCY LEAVE	. 17
19.01 19.02	EMERGENCY LEAVE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE (COMPASSIONATE CARE LEAVE)	
ARTICLE	20 – JURY AND WITNESS DUTY	17
20.01 20.02	JURY AND WITNESS DUTIES	
ARTICLE	21 – MATERNITY LEAVE	18
	22 – PARENTAL LEAVE	
	23 – SICK LEAVE/SHORT TERM DISABILITY (FULL TIME EMPLOYEE'S	
23.06	USE OF ACCUMULATED CREDITS	19
ARTICLE	24 - WORKPLACE SAFETY AND INSURANCE	20
ARTICLE	25 - VACATION	21
25.04 25.05	VACATION SCHEDULES	21 22
ARTICLE	26 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	23
	CHANGE OF CARRIER	24 24

26.04		2
26.05 26.06	BENEFITS WHILE ON SICK LEAVE	2
ARTICI	E 27 – UNION-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	
	E 28 – SENIORITY AND SERVICE	
28.01 28.02	SENIORITY A COUNTY A TOO	25
28.02	SENIORITY ACCUMULATION	25
28.04	EFFECT OF ABSENCE	
28.05	LAYOFF AND RECALL RIGHTS	28
ARTICL	E 29 – EMPLOYMENT STABILITY	
29.01	NOTICE OF LAYOFF	
29.02	Layoff Provisions	
29.03	NOTICE OF RECALL	29
29.04	CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS	31
ARTICLI	E 30 – TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE	31
ARTICLI	E 31 – POSTING AND FILLING OF VACANCIES	31
31.06	FILLING POSTED VACANCIES	32
31.07	PROMOTION TO HIGHER RATED CLASSIFICATION	33
31.10	TEMPORARY AND POSTED VACANCIES	
ARTICLE	E 32 – HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	33
32.01	Hours of Work	
32.02	REST PERIODS	
32.03	OVERTIME DEFINITION	34
32.03.	1 OVERTIME DEFINITION	34
32.04	MISSED MEAL	34
32.05	Days Off – Full Time Employees	35 35
ARTICLE	E 33 - COMPENSATION	
33.01	NEW CLASSIFICATIONS	35
33.02	GRID PROGRESSION - FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES ONLY	36
33.03	GRID PROGRESSION - PART-TIME EMPLOYEES ONLY	36
	34 - PREMIUM PAYMENTS/TRANSPORTATION/MEAL ALLOWANCE	
34.01	SHIFT PREMIUM	
34.02 34.03	MEAL ALLOWANCE	
J4.UJ	OALL DACK FAT	37

34.04	On Call Duty (Stand-by)	
34.05	TIME OFF BETWEEN SHIFTS (SHIFT SCHEDULES)	. 38
34.06	CHANGE OF SCHEDULE	. 38
34.07	SHIFT EXCHANGE	. 38
34.08	REPORTING PAY	38
34.09	PERSONAL VEHICLE USAGE	39
34.10	No Pyramiding	39
ARTICLE	35 - GENERAL	39
35.01	PRINTING OF COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT	39
ARTICLE	36 – MODIFIED WORK	40
ARTICLE	37 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE	40
37.01	LEAVE WITHOUT PAY	40
37.02	MILITARY LEAVE	
37.03	EDUCATIONAL LEAVE	40
ARTICLE	38 – CONTRACTING OUT	41
ARTICLE	39 - DURATION	42
LETTER (OF UNDERSTANDING #1	43
LETTER (OF UNDERSTANDING #2	44
SCHEDU	LE "A" – WAGES	15

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish and maintain collective bargaining relations between the Company and the employees covered by this Agreement; to provide for on-going means of communication between the Union and the Company and the prompt resolution of grievances and the final settlement of disputes and to establish and maintain mutually satisfactory salaries, hours of work and other conditions of employment in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. It is recognized that employees, the Union and the Company wish to work together to secure the best possible service for our customer.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all Facilities Management personnel employed by Honeywell at the Waypoint Centre for Mental Health Care in Penetanguishene save and except supervisors, managers and those above the rank of manager, office staff, project managers, technical staff (such as Automation Technicians and external Honeywell trades personnel) and engineering staff (such as professional engineers, engineering technicians) and persons for whom any other trade union held bargaining as of December 14, 2008.

ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS

3.01 **Definitions**

Whenever the feminine pronoun is used in this Agreement, it includes the masculine pronoun and vice versa where the context so requires. Where the singular is used, it may also be deemed to mean plural and vice versa.

3.02 Full Time

Full-time employees are employees engaged to fill a permanent position and regularly working the normal or standard work week averaged over a biweekly pay period.

3.03 Part Time

A Part-time employee is an employee who is regularly scheduled not more than 24 hours per week and who makes a commitment to the Company to be available for work on a predetermined basis as required by the Company. Part- time (PT) employees are not guaranteed a specific number of shifts per pay period or per scheduling period. Prior to the utilization of Casual staff, Part- time employees will be given the option of being scheduled for additional shifts over and above their normal commitment in the event of illnesses, vacations, emergencies and other periods of staff shortages.

3.04 Casual

A Casual employee is defined as an employee whose work is not normally scheduled on a predetermined basis but who may be prescheduled or called in on a relief basis only to fill in for illness, vacations, emergencies and other periods of staff shortages once it has been determined that no Part-time employees with the requisite qualifications and ability to perform the job have agreed to work the required number of shifts available. Once a Casual employee has been scheduled or called in under these provisions a Part-time employee may not displace them. Casual employees who have not made themselves available for a six-(6) month calendar period may be terminated from employment from the Company. All articles of this agreement that refer to Part Time employees shall also cover casual employees.

3.05 **Temporary Employee**

A Temporary employee is defined as an employee filling a vacancy caused by illness, accident, pregnancy/parental leaves, vacation, leaves of absences not expected to exceed greater than 12-months or specific tasks or projects of less than 12 continuous calendar months. They may be assigned either full-time or part-time hours as identified elsewhere in this Agreement.

Temporary employees regardless of hours worked will be paid the applicable wage and percentage in lieu of benefit payments as defined elsewhere in the agreement.

Temporary employees are not eligible for Layoff and Recall rights as per Article 30 (Employment stability) of this agreement but are entitled to Employment Standards Act severance and notice provisions.

Temporary employees are not eligible to apply for posted vacancies until they have completed at least six (6) months of their assignment.

The termination of a temporary employee shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration provided the basis for such termination is not arbitrary, discriminatory or in bad faith.

ARTICLE 4- RELATIONSHIP

- 4.01 The Company and the Union each agree that there will be no intimidation, discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion exercised or practiced by either of them or their representatives or members because of an employee's membership or non-membership in the Union or because of their activity or lack of activity in the Union.
- 4.02 The Union further agrees that there shall not be solicitation for membership or other Union activities during working hours except as specifically permitted by this Agreement or in writing by the Company.

4.03 It is agreed that issues such as privacy and confidentiality shall be respected by all parties covered by this collective agreement.

<u>ARTICLE 5 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS</u>

- The Union recognizes that the management of the operations and the direction of the employees are fixed exclusively with the Company and shall remain solely with the Company and without restricting the generality of the foregoing it is the exclusive function of the Company to:
 - (a) maintain order, discipline, and efficiency;
 - (b) hire, assign, promote, demote, classify, transfer, direct, lay-off, recall and to suspend, discipline or discharge employees provided that a claim by an employee that they have been disciplined or discharged without just cause may be subject of a grievance and dealt with as hereinafter provided;
 - establish, alter, and enforce reasonable rules and regulations to be observed by the employees; provided that such rules and regulations shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement;
 - (d) determine all work schedules, the kind and location of equipment to be used, methods to be used, the location and number of employees required from time to time, the services to be performed, the standards of performance of all employees, work assignments, the hours of work and all other rights and responsibilities of management not specifically modified elsewhere in this Agreement;
 - (e) There shall be no verbal or written agreements with any employees that are contrary to this Collective Agreement, without agreement with the Union.
 - (f) Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall not exercise these rights in an arbitrary, discriminatory or bad faith manner.

ARTICLE 6 - UNION REPRESENTATION

6.01 Union Stewards

The Company agrees to recognize a steward who shall be an employee who has completed his/her probationary period. The function of the steward shall be to assist employees in their respective areas in the processing of any grievance which may properly arise under the provisions of this Agreement. The Union will notify the Company of the name of the steward in writing before the Company shall be required to recognize the same.

The Company will further recognize that the Union has the sole right to appoint stewards as they see fit when engaged in Union business.

The Union recognizes and agrees that the stewards have their regular duties to perform in connection with their employment and that only such time as is necessary will be taken by the steward during working hours. The steward shall obtain the permission of the steward's supervisor before leaving work to assist any employee in investigating or presenting the employee's grievance. If in the performance of duties, a Union Steward is required to enter an area within the Hospital in which they are not ordinarily employed, the Steward shall report their presence to the supervisor in the area immediately upon entering it.

When resuming their regular duties and responsibilities, such steward shall report to their immediate supervisor. A Union Steward shall suffer no loss of earnings for time spent in performing the above duties during their regular scheduled working hours.

6.02 **New Employee Orientation**

All new employees will have the opportunity to meet with a representative of the Union in the employ of the Company for a period of up to thirty (30) minutes during the employee's probationary period, without loss of regular earnings. The purpose of such meeting will be to acquaint the employee(s) with such representative of the Union and the collective agreement. These interviews will be scheduled in advance and may be arranged collectively or individually by the Company.

6.03 Bulletin Boards

Bulletin boards will be made available to the Union for the posting of official Union notices. Such bulletin boards shall be in areas where all employees will have access to them. All notices shall be signed by an Executive member of the Union. The notices must pertain to local Union work-related issues. The Company reserves the right to have the notice(s) removed.

ARTICLE 7 – UNION BUSINESS LEAVE

7.01 Union Business

The Company shall endeavour to grant a leave of absence without pay but with no loss of credits to the Union Steward for the purpose of attending conferences, schools, seminars, conventions or other such activities related to the Union where the Company is provided with no less than fourteen (14) calendar days notice of such absence. Failure to provide such notice may result in the request being denied. Approval of the leave is subject to operating conditions and shall not exceed an aggregate of five (5) days per calendar year.

7.02 Union Position Leave Full Time

When an employee is elected as the Union's President or First Vice President (Provincially) the Union will, immediately following such election, advise the Company of the name of the employee so elected. Leave of absence shall be granted from the employee's place of employment for the duration of the current term of office. The Union shall reimburse the Company the amounts paid on behalf of the employee, including pay and benefits.

7.03 Executive Board Member

Where an individual of the bargaining units represented centrally by OPSEU is elected or appointed as an Executive Board Member, Executive Officer, member of the central negotiating committee, member of Mental Health Division Executive or as a Membership Development Trainee, such individual shall be granted leave of absence without pay for the time off required to exercise the duties of such appointment. The Company will be provided with as much notice as possible and in any event no less than fourteen (14) calendar day's notice. Such positions shall be limited to two (2) members per Division.

7.04 Company Payment For Union Leave

For leaves of absence without pay for Union business under the terms of this Agreement, including unpaid leave for members of the Central Negotiating Team, the employee's salary, and applicable benefits will be maintained by the Company and the Union will reimburse the Company for the cost of salary and benefits. The Company will bill the Union and the Union will reimburse the Company within a reasonable period of time. In addition, there shall be no loss of seniority during such leaves of absence.

ARTICLE 8 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- For the purposes of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a difference arising between the parties relating to the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of the Agreement including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable.
- At the time formal discipline is imposed or at any stage of the grievance procedure, including the complaint stage, an employee is entitled to be represented by their employee representative. In the case of suspension or discharge, the Company shall notify the employee of this right in advance.
- 8.03 It is the mutual desire of the parties hereto that complaints of employees shall be adjusted as quickly as possible, and it is understood that an employee has no grievance until they have first given the immediate supervisor the

opportunity of adjusting the complaint. Such complaint shall be discussed with the immediate supervisor within seven (7) calendar days after the circumstances giving rise to it have occurred or ought reasonably to have come to the attention of the employee and failing settlement within seven (7) days, it shall then be taken up as a grievance within ten (10) days following advice of the immediate supervisor's decision in the following manner and sequence:

Step No. 1

The employee may submit a written grievance, signed by the employee, to the immediate supervisor. The grievance shall identify the nature of the grievance and the remedy sought and should identify the provisions of the Agreement which are alleged to be violated. A meeting will be held within 15 days and the immediate supervisor will deliver their decision in writing within seven (7) days following the day on which the grievance meeting was held. Failing settlement, then:

Step No. 2

Within ten (10) days following the decision in Step No. 1, the grievance may be submitted in writing to the Site Leader or designate. A meeting will then be held between the Site Leader or designate and the Grievor and their representative within fifteen (15) days of the submission of the grievance at Step No. 2 unless extended by agreement of the parties. It is further that the Site Leader or designate may have counsel and assistance as they may desire at such meeting. The decision of the Company shall be delivered in writing within seven (7) days following the date of such meeting. Failing settlement, either party may submit the matter to arbitration within fifteen (15) days after the decision in Step No. 2 is given. If no written request for arbitration is received within such fifteen (15) day period, the grievance will be deemed to have been abandoned.

8.04 Policy Grievance

A complaint or grievance arising directly between the Company and the Union concerning the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the Agreement shall be originated at Step No. 2 within seven (7) days following the circumstances giving rise to the complaint or grievance.

8.05 Discharge or Suspension Grievance

Subject to provisions respecting probationary status in article 15, a claim by an employee that they have been unjustly discharged or suspended shall be treated as a grievance if a written statement of such grievance is lodged by the employee with the Company at Step No. 2 within seven (7) days after the date the discharge or suspension is effected.

The Company agrees to provide written reasons within seven (7) days to the affected employee in the case of discharge or suspension and further agrees

that, subject to provisions respecting probationary status, it will not suspend, discharge or otherwise discipline an employee without just cause.

- 8.06 All agreements reached under the grievance procedure between the representatives of the Company and the representatives of the Union will be final and binding upon the Company and the Union and the employee or employees involved.
- Where no answer is given within the time limit specified in the grievance procedure the grieving party shall be entitled to submit the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure.
- Any grievance initiated by Management may be referred in writing to the Local Union President or designate within ten (10) days of the occurrence of the circumstances giving rise to the grievance, and the Union shall meet within ten (10) days thereafter with a representative of Human Resources to consider the grievance. If final settlement is not completed within ten (10) days of such meeting, the grievance may be referred, by either party, to an Arbitrator.

8.09 **Arbitration**

(a) Where a difference arises between the parties relating to the interpretation, application or administration of this Agreement, including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable, or where an allegation is made that this Agreement has been violated, either of the parties may, after exhausting any grievance procedure established by the Collective Agreement, notify the other party in writing of its desire to submit the difference or allegation to arbitration and the Notice shall contain the names of three (3) persons selected by the first party as being appropriate to act as the Sole Arbitrator herein.

Within ten (10) days thereafter the recipient of the Notice shall inform the first party as to whether or not any of the three (3) names submitted by the first party are acceptable to it as Sole Arbitrator, and in the event that the recipient of the notice is not able to accept any of the three (3) names so put forward it shall name three (3) persons deemed appropriate by it to act as Sole Arbitrator herein. Within ten (10) days after such suggestions are received from the recipient of such notice, and in the event that none of the six (6) names so put forward are acceptable to both parties to act as Sole Arbitrator, the parties jointly agree to request the appropriate government agency for the Province of Ontario to appoint a Sole Arbitrator to hear such grievance.

(b) Where a difference arises between the parties relating to the interpretation, application or administration of this Agreement, including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable, or where an

allegation is made that this Agreement has been violated, and the parties agree in writing to submit the matter to a Board of Arbitration, rather than an Arbitrator, the party moving the matter to arbitration shall make such request in writing addressed to the other party to this Agreement, and at the same time name a nominee. Within seven (7) days thereafter the other party shall name a nominee, provided however, that if such party fails to name a nominee as herein required, the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario shall have power to effect such appointment upon application thereto by the party invoking the arbitration procedure. The two nominees shall attempt to select by agreement a chairperson of the Arbitration Board. If they are unable to agree upon such a chairperson within a period of fourteen (14) calendar days, they shall then request the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario to appoint a chairperson.

- No person may be appointed as an arbitrator who has been involved in an attempt to negotiate or settle the grievance.
- No matter may be submitted to arbitration which has not been properly carried through all requisite steps of the Grievance Procedure.
- The Arbitrator shall not be authorized to make any decision inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, nor to alter, modify, add to or amend any part of this Agreement.
- 8.13 The proceedings of the Arbitrator will be expedited by the parties hereto and the decision of the majority and where there is no majority the decision of the chairperson will be final and binding upon the parties hereto and the employee or employees concerned.
- 8.14 Each of the parties hereto will bear the expense of the nominee appointed by it and the parties will share equally the fees and expenses, if any, of the chairperson of the Arbitration Board.
- Wherever Arbitrator is referred to in the Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to substitute an Arbitration Board for the Arbitrator at the time of reference to arbitration and the other provisions referring to the Arbitrator shall appropriately apply, with the modifications noted in Article 8.10(b).
- The time limits set out in the Grievance and Arbitration Procedures herein are mandatory and failure to comply strictly with such time limits, except by the written agreement of the parties shall result in the grievance being deemed to have been abandoned, subject only to the provisions of Section 48 (16) of the Labour Relations Act, as amended.
- 8.17 In Article 8, "days" shall include all days exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and designated holidays.
- 8.18 The parties agree that principles of full disclosures of issues in dispute as

alleged by a grievance advanced by the Union on behalf of a member or members or the Union itself and full disclosure of facts relied upon by management in a decision that is subject to a grievance are key elements in amicable and expeditious dispute resolution processes.

- The parties agree that at the earliest stage of the grievance procedure, either party upon request is entitled to receive from the other, full disclosure on a without prejudice basis to each other, with the purpose of providing both parties with the opportunity to understand the grievance and to prepare for the meeting(s).
- An employee who has a grievance and is required to attend meetings at the complaint stage, Step One and Two of the grievance procedure shall be given time off with no loss of pay and with no loss of credits to attend such meetings.
- 8.21 Article 8.21 shall also apply to the Union steward who is authorized to represent the grievor at the complaint stage, Step One and Step Two of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 9 - WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT

9.01 Any employee excluded from the bargaining unit shall not perform duties normally performed by employees in the bargaining unit which shall directly cause or result in lay-off to employees in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 10 - NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE

10.01 Pay for Local Negotiating Committee

The Company agrees to recognize a negotiating committee comprised of two (2) members to be elected or appointed from within the bargaining unit. The Company agrees that the members of the negotiating committee shall suffer no loss of earnings and credits for time spent during their regularly scheduled working hours in attending negotiation meetings with the Company up to, and including conciliation.

- The Union may at its discretion require a reasonable number of members, at any one time, to be granted a leave of absence without pay but with no loss of credits and seniority for the purpose of assisting the Union in advising and educating the members with respect to the collective bargaining process.
- Nothing in this provision is intended to preclude the Union negotiating committee from having the assistance of any representatives of OPSEU when negotiating with the Company.

10.04 The Company will adjust the scheduled shifts of workers on the bargaining team to coincide with scheduled dates during the bargaining process.

ARTICLE 11 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

The Union agrees there shall be no strikes and the Company agrees that there shall be no lock-outs so long as this agreement continues to operate. The terms "strike" and "lock-out" shall bear the meaning given them in the Ontario Labour Relations Act.

ARTICLE 12 - CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES

- The Company shall deduct from each bi-weekly pay of each bargaining unit employee from the first day of employment, an amount equivalent to such Union dues as the Union advises the Company. In addition, the Company shall deduct Union dues from any retroactive wage payments made to the employees. The Company agrees that it will remit the total amount of such deductions to the Supervisor of Accounting Department of the Union, no later than the 15th day of each month following the month that deductions were made.
- 12.02 The Union will advise the Company in writing of the amount of its regular dues. The amount specified shall continue to be deducted until changed by further written notice to the Company.
- The Union agrees to save the Company harmless and to indemnify the Company with respect to any claim made against the Company by any employee or group of employees arising out of the deduction of union dues as herein provided.
- The Company agrees to print the amount of total dues deduction paid by each employee for the previous year on the individual's Income Tax T4 form.

ARTICLE 13 - NON-DISCRIMINATION

13.01 It is agreed that there will be no discrimination by either party to this Agreement or by any of the employees covered by this Agreement against any employee because of race, ancestry, place of origin, colour, ethnic origin, citizenship, creed, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, family status, or disability, as defined in section 10(1) of the *Ontario Human Rights Code* (OHRC).

ARTICLE 14 - DISCIPLINE AND EMPLOYEE FILES

14.01 Notification of Disciplinary Action

The Company agrees to provide copies of formal discipline letters to the Local President.

Any letter of reprimand, suspension or other sanction will be removed from the record of an employee twenty-four (24) months following the receipt of such letter, suspension or other sanction provided that such employee's record has been discipline-free during that time.

14.03 Interview and Representation

Prior to any interview which might be the basis of disciplinary action, the employee will be informed of the purpose of the interview and their entitlement to have a Union Representative. Reasonable notice where possible, as to the time and place of the interview will be provided to the employee. The Company shall endeavour to adjust the employee's schedule to facilitate attendance during working hours. At the interview, the employee and the Union representative may make representations and ask questions concerning the events and circumstances.

14.04 Access to Employee Files

Upon written request of an employee, each employee shall have reasonable access to their Human Resource and Employee Health file. Such review shall take place in the presence of the Company's staff. A copy of any portion or the complete document will be provided to the employee on request. An employee has the right to request the removal of any information that is not relevant to the terms of employment and/ or health record.

<u>ARTICLE 15 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD</u>

- Newly hired employees shall be considered to be on probation for a period of one hundred and twenty (120) days worked from date of last hire (900 hours of work for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day). If retained after the probationary period, the employee shall be credited with seniority from date of last hire. With the written consent of the Company, the probationary employee and the President of the Local Union or designate, such probationary period may be extended.
- 15.02 It is understood and agreed that any extension to the probationary period will not exceed an additional sixty (60) days (450 hours of work for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day) worked or such lesser period as may be agreed by the parties.

- The Company shall have the right to release a probationary employee for reasons based on performance and the ability to do the job, including skills, suitability and availability. The release of a probationary employee shall be at the discretion of the Company and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure unless the probationary employee is released for reasons which are arbitrary, discriminatory or in bad faith.
- The Company agrees to provide written reasons for the termination of a probationary employee within seven (7) days of such termination.
- 15.05 (a) An employee who transfers from casual or part-time to full-time status shall not be required to serve a probationary period where such employee has previously completed one since their date of last hire. Where no such probationary period has been served, the number of hours worked during the nine months immediately preceding the transfer shall be credited towards the probationary period.
 - (b) An employee who transfers from casual or full-time to part-time status shall not be required to serve a probationary period where such employee has previously completed one since their date of last hire. Where no such probationary period has been served, the number of hours worked during the nine (9) months immediately preceding the transfer shall be credited towards the probationary period.

ARTICLE 16 - HEALTH AND SAFETY

It is a mutual interest of the parties to promote health and safety in workplaces and to prevent and reduce the occurrence of workplace injuries and occupational diseases. The parties agree that health and safety is of the utmost importance and agree to promote health and safety and wellness throughout the organization. The Company shall provide orientation and training in health and safety to new and current employees, and employees shall attend required health and safety training sessions.

16.02 Influenza Vaccine

The parties agree that influenza vaccinations may be beneficial for patients and employees. Upon a recommendation pertaining to a facility or a specifically designated area(s) thereof from the Medical Officer of Health or in compliance with applicable provincial legislation, the following rules will apply:

- (a) Employees shall, subject to the following, be required to be vaccinated for influenza.
- (b) If the full cost of such medication is not covered by some other source, the Company will pay the full or incremental cost for the vaccine and will endeavour to offer vaccinations during an employee's working hours. In addition, employees will be provided with information,

including risks and side effects, regarding the vaccine.

- (c) The Company recognizes that employees have the right to refuse any required vaccination.
- (d) If an employee refuses to take the vaccine required under this provision, such employee may be placed on an unpaid leave of absence during any influenza outbreak in the Company until such time as the employee is cleared to return to work. If an employee is placed on unpaid leave, they can use banked lieu time or vacation credits in order to keep their pay whole.
- (e) If an employee refuses to take the vaccine because it is medically contra-indicated, and where a medical certificate is provided to this effect, they will be reassigned during the outbreak period, unless reassignment is not possible, in which case the employee will be paid. It is agreed that any such reassignment will not adversely impact the scheduled hours of other employees.
- (f) If an employee gets sick as a result of the vaccination, and applies for WSIB, the Company will not oppose the claim.
- (g) Notwithstanding the above, the Company may offer the vaccine on a voluntary basis to an employee free of charge.
- (h) This clause shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the Ontario Human Rights Code.

16.03 Infectious Diseases other than what is contemplated in Article 16.02:

- (a) Where the Company identifies an exposure/ outbreak and where employees are in contact with infectious and communicable diseases, testing and protective medications and treatment shall be provided at no cost to the employee, if available. The Company will cover costs not covered under the Company benefit plans or Provincial Plans.
- (b) Where an employee is directed to remain at home due to quarantine conditions as defined by the Provincial Medical Officer of Health and/or the Regional Public Health Authority, there shall be no deduction of sick credits and no interruption of pay, benefits, credits.

16.04 Violence in the Workplace

In consultation with the Union, based on the recommendations of the site specific JOHSC, the Company will:

(a) conduct risk assessments, as necessary;

- (b) establish work practices and procedures to eliminate or minimize violence;
- establish procedures for reporting, investigating and recording of incidents of violence; and
- (d) provide information and training to employees on the recognition of potentially violent situations and diffusion of violent situations.
- 16.05 The Company shall endeavour to take all reasonable measures to protect employees from violence at work.

16.06 Bullying and Psychological Harassment

The Company and the Union agree that bullying and psychological harassment constitutes inappropriate behaviour in the workplace. The Company and the Union agree to co-operate to the fullest extent possible to ensure the workplace is free from bullying and psychological harassment.

16.07 Safety Equipment

The Company shall provide, where required, appropriate safety equipment, protective clothing, and training in the use of such equipment or clothing. Employees shall use all safety equipment and protective clothing provided and shall participate in any related training programs.

Where safety footwear is required, the Safety footwear allowance shall be seventy-five (\$75) dollars for shoes or one hundred (\$100) dollars for boots paid once a year in November.

<u>ARTICLE 17 – HOLIDAYS – FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES</u>

17.01 General Holidays

The days to be designated as holidays each year during the term of this Agreement shall be the following:

New Year's Day,

Family Day,

Good Friday,

Easter Monday,

Victoria Day,

July 1st,

Civic Holiday,

Labour Day,

Thanksgiving Day,

Remembrance Day,

Christmas Day,

Boxing Day.

For the purposes of clarity, holiday pay will be computed on the basis of the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay times the employee's normal daily hours of work.

Employees shall qualify for holiday pay provided they have worked their last scheduled work day or shift immediately prior to the holiday and their first scheduled work day or shift immediately after the holiday unless they have been excused from doing so by the Company, or in cases of absence due to illness or accident, confirmed by a medical certificate if requested.

17.02 Compensation

A holiday shall be compensated as set out below:

- (a) If a holiday falls on an employee's regularly scheduled day off, then they shall receive a day in lieu. Such lieu day must be taken at a mutually agreeable time prior to March 31st of the following year. If not used by this date, it shall be paid out at the rate it was accumulated.
- (b) An employee scheduled to work on any of the foregoing holidays shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1½) the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked on such holiday. In addition the employee will receive a lieu day off with pay. Such lieu day must be taken at a mutually agreeable time prior to March 31st of the following year. If not used by this date, it shall be paid out at the rate it was accumulated.
- c) Where an employee is required to work overtime on such a shift they shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times their regular straight time hourly rate for the overtime hours.
- An employee who qualifies to receive pay for any holiday or a lieu day will not be entitled, in the event of illness, to receive sick pay in addition to holiday pay or a lieu day in respect of the same day.

17.04 Designation of a Weekend Statutory Holiday

Should a holiday fall on a Saturday or Sunday, the Monday following this holiday or, in some cases the previous Friday as determined by the Company will be recognized as the holiday. In regard to the foregoing, this determination shall be done not later than January 6 of each year. Only those employees who work on the actual holiday (as opposed to the designated day) will receive the applicable premium payment and/or lieu days.

17.05 Identified Religious Holidays

Employees who celebrate identified religious holidays other than those listed above, are entitled to choose from the following:

- (a) An unpaid personal leave; or
- (b) Use accrued vacation time or lieu time

Such time shall be subject to the normal approval processes.

17.06 Part time Employees

A part-time employee shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1 ½) the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked on such holiday. Where the part-time employee is required to work overtime on such a shift, they shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times their regular straight time hourly rate for the overtime hours.

ARTICLE 18 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- Any employee who notifies the Company as soon as possible following a bereavement will be granted bereavement leave for four (4) consecutive scheduled working days off without loss of regular pay from regularly scheduled hours within the nine (9) calendar day period commencing four (4) calendar days prior to the day of the funeral for a spouse, common-law spouse or partner including a same sex spouse/partner; parents (including step-parents), and children and step-children.
- Any employee who notifies the Company as soon as possible following a bereavement will be granted bereavement leave for three (3) consecutive scheduled working days off without loss of regular pay from regularly scheduled hours within the seven (7) calendar day period commencing three (3) calendar days prior to the day of the funeral of a member of their other immediate family.

Immediate family, for the purposes of this Section, shall mean siblings (including brother or sister in-law); spouse/partner's parents; grandparents (including step-grandparents); great grandparents, grandchildren (including step-grandchildren); children's spouse; ward; guardian.

- 18.03 An employee shall be granted one (1) day bereavement leave without loss of regular earnings to attend the funeral, of, or a memorial service (or equivalent) for their aunt, uncle, niece or nephew.
- 18.04 If a burial or memorial service is not held within the seven (7) or nine (9) calendar day period referenced above, an employee can utilize one (1) day of their entitlement, as determined above, within six (6) months following the date of bereavement for the purposes of attending such burial or memorial service.

- 18.05 A part-time employee shall receive credit for their seniority and service for such leave. For clarity, such credit shall only apply to be reavement leave with pay.
- 18.06 The Company, in its discretion, may extend such leave with or without pay. Furthermore, where an employee does not qualify under the above-noted conditions, the Employer may, nonetheless, grant a paid bereavement leave.
- 18.07 If during a period of vacation an employee is bereaved in circumstances under which the employee would have been eligible for leave under this article the employee shall be granted leave and their vacation credits shall be restored.
- In addition to the foregoing, an employee shall be allowed up to two (2) days' leave of absence without pay to attend the funeral of a relative listed in Articles 18.01 and 18.02 above if the location of the funeral is greater than eight hundred kilometers (800 km) from the employee's residence.

ARTICLE 19 - EMERGENCY LEAVE

19.01 Emergency Leave

Employees shall be entitled to up to ten (10) days per year Emergency Leave pursuant to the provisions of the Employment Standards Act 2000.

19.02 Family Medical Leave (Compassionate Care Leave)

Family Medical Leave (Compassionate Care Leave) shall be granted without pay for a period of up to eight (8) weeks in accordance with the Employment Standards Act 2000.

ARTICLE 20 - JURY AND WITNESS DUTY

20.01 Jury and Witness Duties

An employee required to serve on jury duty or as a witness in a case in which the employee has been given a subpoena to attend a court proceeding in which the Crown is a party, shall not lose regular pay because of necessary absence from work due to such attendance, shall not be required to work on the day of such duty and shall not be required to work the night shift immediately prior to such attendance. The Company shall not unreasonably deny any necessary schedule changes to accommodate such duty. The employee shall not be required to work extra hours as a result of such duty or accommodations made to allow attendance at such duty. Employee attendance for jury or witness duty shall be treated as a work day for the employee, provided that the employee:

- (a) Informs the Company immediately upon being notified that the employee will be required for such attendance.
- (b) Presents proof of service requiring the employee's attendance, and promptly repays the Company the amount (other than expenses) paid to the employee for such service as a juror or for attendance as such witness where any monetary compensation is provided for attendance.

20.02 Court of Law or Coroner's Inquest

(Applicable to full-time employees)

In addition to the foregoing, where an employee is required by subpoena to attend a Court of Law or Coroner's Inquest in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Hospital, on their regularly scheduled day off or during their regularly scheduled vacation, the Company will attempt to reschedule the employee's regular day off or vacation period, it being understood that any rescheduling shall not result in the payment of any premium pay. If the Company fails to reschedule such employees, the Company shall arrange lieu time off work for all days the employees would otherwise be off work had it not been for the attendance at Court or the Coroner's Inquest.

(Applicable to part-time employees)

In addition to the foregoing, where a part-time employee is required by subpoena to attend a Court of Law or Coroner's Inquest, in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Company, on their regularly scheduled day off, they shall receive regular pay as if they had been scheduled to work the day.

ARTICLE 21 – MATERNITY LEAVE

21.01 Maternity Leave-shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act 2000.

Vacation credits, seniority and service shall continue to accrue during the pregnancy leave.

ARTICLE 22 – PARENTAL LEAVE

22.01 Parental Leave-shall be-granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act 2000.

Vacation credits, seniority and service continue to accrue during the parental leave.

ARTICLE 23 - SICK LEAVE/SHORT TERM DISABILITY (Full time Employee's only)

Article 23.01 to 23.09 apply to FT only; Article 23.10 applies to FT and PT

- Subject to Article 23.02, an employee who is unable to attend to their duties due to sickness or injury is entitled to a leave of absence with pay as follows:
 - (a) with one hundred percent (100%) of regular salary for the first six (6) working days of absence,
 - (b) with seventy-five percent (75%) of regular salary for an additional one hundred and twenty-four (124) working days of absence, (for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day, the short-term sick leave plan will provide payment for the number of hours of absence according to the scheduled shift to a total of 930 hours.) in each calendar year, which do not accumulate or carry over to subsequent calendar years.
- An employee is not entitled to a leave of absence with pay under Article 23.01 until they have completed a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days of employment.
- Where an employee is on a sick leave of absence which commences in one (1) calendar year and continues into the following calendar year, they are not entitled to leave of absence with pay under Article 23.01 for more than one hundred and thirty (130) working days in the two (2) calendar years combined, unless the employee has returned to work for a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days prior to being entitled to further leave in accordance with Article 23.01.
- An employee who has been on a leave of absence with pay for one hundred and thirty (130) working days in a calendar year under Article 23.01 must complete a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days before they are entitled to further leave under Article 23.01 in the next calendar year.
- The pay of an employee under this Article is subject to deductions for insurance coverage as set out in Article 27.01 and pension contributions that would be made from regular pay if the employee was actively at work. The Employer-paid portion of all payments and premiums will continue to be made.

23.06 Use Of Accumulated Credits

An employee on a leave of absence under Article 23.01(b) may, at their option, have one-quarter (1/4) of a day deducted from their accumulated credits (vacation or overtime credits) for each such day of absence and receive one hundred percent (100%) regular pay during the leave of absence.

- Employees returning from Long Term Income Protection Plan leave to resume employment with the Company must complete a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days of employment to qualify for benefits under the Short Term Sick Leave Plan.
- For the purposes of this article, a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days of employment shall not include vacation leave of absence or any leaves of absence without pay. Where an employee is unable to attend to their duties due to sickness or injury, the days worked before and after such absence shall not be considered consecutive.
- For employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day, the Short-term Sick Leave Plan will provide payment for the number of hours of absence according to the established schedule to a total of 975 hours. All other provisions of the Plan shall apply with the necessary changes.
- After five (5) days' absence caused by sickness, no leave of absence shall be allowed unless a certificate from a legally qualified medical practitioner is forwarded to the Company's designated practitioner (an "example" of which is attached to the collective agreement). Notwithstanding this provision, where it is suspected that there may be an abuse of sick leave, the employee's manager may require an employee to submit a medical certificate for a period of absence of less than five (5) days. Any such certificate requested by the Company, shall be paid by the Company. It is agreed and understood that completion of the form is not a guarantee of sick benefits.

ARTICLE 24 - WORKPLACE SAFETY AND INSURANCE

- An employee who is absent from work as a result of an illness or injury sustained at work and who has been awaiting approval of a claim for Worker's Compensation for a period longer than one complete pay period may apply to the Company for payment equivalent to the lesser of the benefit the employee would receive from Workers' Compensation if the employee's claim was approved, or the benefit to which the employee would be entitled under the short term sick plan (Article 23). An employee shall be allowed to top up to 100% of salary by using available vacation or lieu credits upon request.
- 24.02 Payment by the Company will be provided only if the employee's absence is approved pursuant to Article 23 and the employee provides a written undertaking satisfactory to the Company that any payments will be refunded to the Company following final determination of the claim by The Workers' Compensation Board.
- 24.03 If the claim for Workers' Compensation is not approved, the monies paid to the employee as per article 24.01 will be applied towards the benefits to which the employee would be entitled under the short term sick plan.

ARTICLE 25 - VACATION

Note: Articles 25.01 to 25.06 apply to full-time only; Article 25.07 applies to Part time only.

25.01 Employees shall be entitled to vacation as follows:

All employees who have completed less than one (1) year of continuous service shall be entitled to a vacation on the basis of 1.25 days per month for each completed month of service with pay in the amount of six per cent (6%) of gross earnings.

All employees shall receive three (3) weeks vacation after one (1) year of continuous service, and four (4) weeks vacation after six (6) years of continuous service.

All employees shall receive five (5) weeks vacation after fifteen (15) years of continuous service.

All employees shall receive six (6) weeks vacation after twenty-four (24) thirty (30) years of continuous service.

Vacation entitlement is added to the employee's bank with each pay (normally 1/26th of the yearly total), based on the vacation entitlement. Employees may request paid vacation up to their total vacation entitlement of the current year.

Employees hired after January 1, 2015 will be covered under the Standard Honeywell vacation policy including the same terms and conditions as provided to Non-Bargaining Unit Employees.

- Employees may accumulate vacation to a maximum of twice their annual allowance but must reduce the accumulation to a maximum of one (1) year allowance by December 31 of each calendar year, or the excess allowance will be paid as of December 31.
- 25.03 If, for any reason, employment is terminated and vacation taken exceeds accrued vacation, the overpayment is to be repaid by the employee to the Company. Unused vacation credits will be paid out to the employee.

25.04 Vacation Schedules

a) The Company will endeavour to accommodate the employee in scheduling vacations in accordance with specific periods requested. However, where the granting of all such requests would prejudice the efficient operation of the department, seniority will prevail in determining the time a specific employee's vacation is scheduled.

- b) Vacations may be taken at any time of the year between January 1 and December 31 inclusive. The vacation application schedule shall be posted by February 1 and completed by March 1 of each year. The final vacation schedule shall be posted by April 1 each year and once posted; changes may only be effected with the Company agreement.
- c) Vacation requests submitted after the vacation application period will be granted on a first come first serve basis once the vacation schedule has been posted and subject to the efficient operation of the department.
- d) In the interests of equity, an employee may not utilize more than two (2) consecutive weeks of accumulated vacation credits during prime vacation time if it limits access to another employee during this time. This will not preclude the Company from scheduling more than two (2) weeks where possible. Prime time shall be defined as; March Break, June 15 September 15, and the Christmas week.

25.05 Interrupted Vacation

Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to serious illness or injury, which commenced prior to and continues into the scheduled vacation period, the period of such illness or injury shall be considered sick leave.

Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to serious illness requiring the employee to be an in-patient in a hospital, the period of such hospitalization shall be considered sick leave.

The portion of the employee's vacation which is deemed to be sick leave under the above provisions will not be counted against the employee's vacation credits.

25.06 Vacation Credits

As soon as practicable after January 1st, the Company shall provide to employees the number of vacation credits to which the employee is entitled.-

All part-time employees shall be entitled to vacation pay based upon the applicable percentage provided in accordance with the vacation entitlement of full-time employees based on their gross salary for work performed in the applicable pay period.

Equivalent years of service shall be used to determine vacation pay entitlement. Equivalent years of service shall be calculated on the basis of one (1) year of service for each 1950 hours worked.

Notwithstanding this provision, the calculation of service for purposes of vacation entitlement will include service accrued during a pregnancy leave or parental leave on the basis of seniority accrual during such leaves in accordance with Article 29.02 (a) (ii) of the agreement.

ARTICLE 26 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

NOTE: The provisions of Articles 26.01 with respect to Health and Welfare Benefits apply to full-time employees only.

Coverage will be available to an employee and their same sex, common-law partner/spouse and their dependents in accordance with terms and conditions of plans.

26.01 Effective June 1, 2015, the Company agrees to contribute ninety-five percent (95%) towards the premium cost of participating eligible employees in the active employ of the Company under the insurance plans for Extended Healthcare (including Vision and Hearing Aids) and Dental subject to the respective terms and conditions of each applicable plan including any enrolment requirements. Effective January 1, 2016, the Company contribution will decrease to ninety percent (90%). Effective as of January 1. 2017, the Company contribution will be reduced to eighty-five (85%). Participating employees will pay the remaining balance of the monthly premiums through payroll deduction. For newly hired employees, coverage as set out in Article 27.01 shall be effective no later than the first day of the fourth (4th) full calendar month following the month in which the newlyhired employee was first employed by the Company. Participation in the Company benefits plan (including Long Term Income Protection ("LTIP")) is Employees may waive health and/or dental coverage for themselves and their dependents only if they provide proof of spouse/partner coverage.

(a) Group Life Insurance

The Company shall contribute one hundred percent (100%) toward the monthly premium of the group life insurance plan in effect for eligible full-time employees in the active employ of the Company in accordance with the eligibility conditions set out in the existing Group Life Insurance Plan.

(b) Long-term income plan

The Company will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the billed premium towards coverage of eligible employees under the long term disability plan (LTIP).

26.02 Change of Carrier

It is understood that the Company may at any time substitute another carrier for any Plan provided the benefits provided by the substitute carrier are reasonably equivalent and are neither reduced or increased. The Company shall provide to the Union full specifications of the applicable benefit programs contracted for before implementation of any change.

26.03 Pension

OPSEU employees who were grandfathered in the OPSEU Pension Trust ("OPT) as of November 30, 2013 shall continue to participate as a member of the OPT in accordance with OPT terms and condition.

Any employees not a member of the OPT as of November 30, 2013 or thereafter shall join the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan ("HOOPP") as a condition of employment.

26.04 Part-Time Benefits

A part-time employee shall receive in lieu of all fringe benefits (being those benefits to an employee, paid in whole or in part by the Company, as part of direct compensation or otherwise, including holiday pay, save and except salary, vacation pay, standby pay, call-in pay, responsibility pay, jury and witness duty, bereavement leave, and an amount equal to fourteen percent (14%) of their regular straight time hourly rate for all straight time hours paid. For part-time employees who are members of the OPT or HOOPP the percentage in lieu of fringe benefits is ten percent (10%).

26.05 Benefits While on Sick Leave

The Company will pay the employer portion of the insured benefit premiums for the Health and Welfare Benefits provided in accordance with Article 27.01 while an employee is on sick leave in accordance with Article 23 and LTIP, to a maximum of thirty (30) months from the date the absence began.

26.06 Benefits Information

- (a) The Company shall provide each employee with access to information booklets outlining all of the current provisions in the benefit plans defined in article 27.01. Upon request, the Company will make the official Health and Welfare Benefit plan(s) documents available to the Union for inspection.
- (b) The Company shall notify the Union of the name(s) of the carrier(s) which provide the Health and Welfare Benefit plans defined in Article 27.01. The Company shall also provide the Union with access to all current information booklets provided to the employees.

(c) In the event of a conflict between the terms of the official Health and Welfare Benefit plan(s) documents and the information booklets provided to employees, the terms of the official plan documents will govern.

ARTICLE 27 -- UNION-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

- The Company and Union agree to meet upon request at a mutually convenient time during the lifetime of this Agreement for the purpose of discussing issues involving matters arising out of the administration of this Agreement. The party requesting such a meeting shall supply an agenda of the matters to be discussed as such meeting at least five (5) days prior to the meeting being held.
 - (a) The Union Representatives of the Union-Management Committee shall attend such joint meetings with no loss of pay or credits.
- 27.02 Prior to effecting any changes in corporate policies which affect employees covered by this agreement, the Company agrees to provide copies to the Union and meet with the Union upon request.

ARTICLE 28 - SENIORITY AND SERVICE

28.01 **Seniority List**

The Company shall keep an up-to-date seniority list and identify part time from full time employees. The seniority list shall be forwarded to the OPSEU Staff Representative and to employees in January of each year with a copy to be supplied to the local union.

Complaints about the accuracy of the seniority list will be considered within thirty (30) days of the date of such posting and if no complaint or grievance is received within that time, the list shall be deemed to be accurate.

28.02 Seniority Accumulation

- (a) (i) Part-time employees shall accumulate seniority on the basis of number of hours worked in the bargaining unit excluding overtime.
 - For clarity, seniority shall include credit from the date of last hire with the former employer, the Hospital.
 - (ii) Notwithstanding Article 29.02 (a) (i) seniority shall accrue during a pregnancy leave or parental leave. Seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on

pregnancy leave. For parental leave, seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave.

For the purposes of pregnancy leave and parental leave, seniority accrual shall be determined by multiplying the normal weekly hours times the number of weeks the employee is absent on such leave.

(iii) Seniority for part-time employees shall accrue for absences due to a disability resulting in WSIB benefits, or illness or injury in excess of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days. The rate of accumulation will be based on the employee's normal weekly hours paid over the preceding qualifying twenty-six (26) weeks. A qualifying week is a week where the employee is not absent due to vacation, pregnancy/parental leave, WSIB, or illness or injury that exceed thirty (30) consecutive calendar days.

(Article 29.02 (b), (c) and (d) are applicable to full-time employees only)

- (b) Full-time employees will accumulate seniority on the basis of their continuous service in the bargaining unit from the last date of hire, except as otherwise provided in the collective agreement. For clarity, seniority shall include credit from the date of last hire with the former employer, the Hospital.
- (c) In the application of seniority, no employee's seniority date may predate their start date.
- (d) (i) It is understood that during an approved unpaid absence not exceeding thirty (30) continuous days or any approved absence paid by the Company, both seniority and service will accrue.

During an unpaid absence exceeding thirty (30) continuous calendar days, credit for service for purposes of salary increments, vacation, sick leave, or any other benefit under any provision of the Collective Agreement or elsewhere, shall be suspended; the benefits concerned appropriately reduced on a pro rata basis and the employee's anniversary date adjusted accordingly.

In addition, the employee will become responsible for full payment of subsidized employee benefits in which they are participating for the period of the absence. The employee may arrange with the Company to prepay the full premium of any applicable subsidized benefits in which they are participating

during the period of leave in excess of thirty (30) continuous days to ensure continuing coverage.

It is further understood that during such absence, credit for seniority shall be suspended and not accrue during the period of absence. Notwithstanding this provision, seniority shall accrue if an employee's absence is due to disability resulting in WSIB benefits or LTD benefits including the period of the disability program covered by Employment Insurance.

(ii) Notwithstanding Article 29.02 (d) (i), seniority and service shall accumulate for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on pregnancy leave. For parental leave, seniority and service shall accumulate for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave.

The Company will continue to pay its share of the premiums of the subsidized employee benefits including pension, in which the employee is participating for a period from the commencement of the leave up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on pregnancy leave and up to thirty-five (35) weeks while the employee is on parental leave (thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave), unless the employee does not intend to pay their contributions.

28.03 Transfer of Seniority

Seniority and service shall be retained by an employee when transferred from full-time to part-time or vice versa. An employee whose status is changed from full-time to part-time shall receive credit for their seniority and service on the basis of 1950 hours worked for each year of full-time seniority and service. An employee whose status is changed from part-time to full-time shall receive credit for their seniority and service on the basis of one (1) year of seniority and service for each 1950 hours worked. Any time worked in excess of an equivalent shall be pro-rated at the time of transfer.

28.04 Effect of Absence

An employee shall lose all service and seniority and shall be deemed to have terminated if the employee:

- (a) resigns or retires;
- (b) is discharged and the discharge is not reversed through the grievance or arbitration procedure;
- (c) has been laid off without recall for twenty-four (24) months
- (d) is absent from scheduled work for a period of ten (10) or more consecutive working days without notifying the Company of

absence and providing a reason satisfactory to the Company;

- (e) fails to return to work (subject to the provisions of (d)) upon termination of an authorized leave of absence without a satisfactory reason to the Company or utilizes a leave of absence, without permission, for purposes other than that for which the leave was granted;
- (f) fails upon being notified of a recall to signify their intention to return within seven (7) working days after they have received the notice of recall mailed by registered mail to the last known address according to the records of the Company and fails to report for work within ten (10) working days after receiving the notice of recall or such further period of time as may be agreed upon by the parties.

28.05 Layoff and Recall Rights

In the event of a lay-off, an updated seniority list in electronic and hard copy will be provided to the Local Union President or designate.

ARTICLE 29 - EMPLOYMENT STABILITY

29.01 Notice of layoff

(a) In the event of a planned layoff, the Company shall provide notice or pay in lieu of notice in accordance with the terms of the *Employment Standards Act*, 2000.

Prior to issuing the notice, the Company will meet with the union to discuss the layoff and consider, in good faith, any proposals of the union to lessen the impact of the layoff on any of the affected employees.

29.02 Layoff Provisions

- (a) A "layoff" includes a temporary or permanent discontinuation of work or a reduction in hours of work of a position(s) due to a lack of work or reduction or discontinuation of service(s) for any reason.
- (b) In the event of a layoff, temporary and probationary employees, in that order, shall be laid off in the reverse order of seniority. Thereafter, should a layoff of employees still be required, employees will be laid off in the reverse order of their bargaining unit seniority, provided that the employees retained have the qualifications and ability to perform the work available. For the purposes of this article, temporary employees and temporary vacancies shall be understood to mean two (2) months.
- (c) An employee who is subject to layoff shall have the right to:
 - i) accept the layoff; or

- ii) opt to retire, if eligible under the terms of the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP) or OPSEU Pension Trust; or
- iii) displace an employee who is the least senior employee in the same classification and/or an identical and/or lower paying classification in the bargaining unit, provided the employee originally subject to layoff is qualified to perform the duties of the displaced employee.

Clarity note: An identical paying classification shall include any classification where the straight time hourly wage rate corresponding to that of the laid off employee is within 1% of the laid off employee's straight time hourly wage rate.

The decision of the employee to choose 30.02(c)(iv) above shall be given in writing to the Coordinator, Human Resources within five (5) days (excluding Saturday, Sunday and Holidays) following the notification of lay off. Employees failing to do so will be deemed to have accepted the lay off. An employee who chooses 30.02(c)(iv) above shall not have the right to choose 30.02(c)(i), (ii) or (iii).

An employee is deemed to be qualified if they possess the appropriate qualifications and are able to meet the normal requirements of the job or who would be able to meet the normal requirements of the job with the benefit of re-training. Such re-training will be equivalent to that which would be provided to new or external candidates. It is understood that the number of trainees in each program/ department will be the subject of discussions between the Union and the Company, but at least one (1) trainee per program will be allowed at any one time.

(d) In the event that a layoff commenced on the day immediately following a paid holiday, an employee otherwise qualified for holiday pay shall not be disentitled thereto solely because of the day on which the layoff commenced.

29.03 Notice of Recall

- (a) Employees shall be placed on recall for twenty-four (24) months. Employees shall be recalled in order of bargaining unit seniority, provided they have the qualifications and ability to perform the work available.
- (b) An employee recalled to work in a different classification or position from which they were laid off shall be entitled to return to the classification or position held prior to the layoff should it become vacant within six (6) months of the layoff, provided that the employee remains qualified and able to perform the duties of their former

position. This would take precedence over the normal job posting procedure.

- (c) No new employee shall be hired into a department/program until any employee laid off from that department/program has been given the opportunity of re-employment subject to the provisions of article 30.03 (a).
- (d) The Company shall notify employees of a recall opportunity by registered mail addressed to the last address on record with the Company. The notification shall state the job to which the employee is eligible to be recalled and the date and time at which the employee shall report for work.
- (e) Employees shall be given as much notice as possible of recall opportunities and, where practical, will be contacted personally by the Company prior to written notice being sent. An employee shall notify the Company of their intention to return to work within seven (7) days (exclusive of Saturday, Sunday and paid holidays) of receipt of the recall notice and shall return to work within ten (10) working days of being notified or on a date that is mutually agreeable between the employee and the Company.
- (f) Laid off employees shall be offered by seniority temporary vacancies for which they have the ability and qualifications to perform. For the purpose of this Article 30.03(f) a temporary vacancy is one which is expected to exceed ten (10) working days if unscheduled and five (5) working days if arising out of a pre-scheduled leave of absence.

Laid off employees shall be offered temporary vacancies in order of seniority subject to the following:

- the employee must be qualified and able to perform the available work;
- ii) acceptance or refusal of the vacancy is voluntary and will not affect the employee's position on the recall list;
- iv) the employee shall be credited with service and seniority for all time worked;
- iv) a temporary assignment of less than sixty (60) calendar days shall not be considered as time worked for the purpose of determining an employee's layoff status;
- v) if the temporary assignment exceeds sixty (60) calendar days the employee's recall rights pursuant to the layoff and recall protocol shall recommence from the end of such assignment.

(g) An employee is entitled to refuse an offer of recall. If an employee refuses an offer of recall to their own position, the employee shall be placed on the bottom of the recall list.

29.04 Continuation of benefits

In the event of a layoff, the Company shall pay its share of insured benefits premiums up to three (3) months from the end of the month in which the layoff occurs or until the laid-off employee is employed elsewhere, whichever occurs first.

An employee who, is laid off or resigns and receives pay in lieu of notice may continue benefits coverage at their own expense, except for coverage under the Short Term Sickness Plan and the Long Term Income Protection, for a period of nine (9) months following layoff or resignation by arranging to pay the full premiums, in advance, on a quarterly basis.

Failure by the employee to pay the premiums as specified above, will disentitle the employee to any further benefits.

For purposes of clarity, the continuation of benefits as described above, shall not exceed twelve (12) months in total.

<u>ARTICLE 30 – TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE</u>

The Company undertakes to notify the Union as far in advance as possible and in any event no less than three (3) months, of any technological changes which the Company has decided to introduce which will significantly change the employment status of members of the bargaining unit.

The Company agrees to discuss with the Union the effect of such technological changes on the employment status of employees and to consider practical ways and means of minimizing the adverse effect, if any, on employees concerned.

<u>ARTICLE 31 – POSTING AND FILLING OF VACANCIES</u>

- When a permanent vacancy or temporary vacancy reasonably expected to exceed six (6) months occurs in a bargaining unit position or a new position in the bargaining unit is established by the Company, it shall be advertised for at least ten (10) working days prior to the established closing date. Where practicable, notices of vacancies shall be posted electronically and on bulletin boards and, upon request, shall be provided in large-sized print or braille where the posting location has the capacity to do so.
- The notice of vacancy shall include, where applicable, the nature and title of the position, salary, qualifications required, the hours of work, the department/program where the position currently exists, and that the position

is represented by the Union.

- 31.03 Employees with an interest in applying for any vacancies may request from the Company the job position/description and the Company will provide it.
- 31.04 (a) Temporary vacancies required for six months or less may be filled at the discretion of the Company. In filling such vacancies consideration shall be given to employees on the basis of seniority who are qualified to perform the work in question prior to utilizing persons from outside the bargaining unit.

In addition, the Company shall have the right to fill any permanent vacancy on a temporary basis until the posting procedure or the Request for Transfer procedure has been complied with and arrangements have been made to permit the employee selected to fill the vacancy to be assigned to the job.

- (b) Full time and part time employees filling temporary vacancies will retain their existing employment status.
- (c) Where an employee is assigned temporarily to perform the duties of a position in a classification with a higher salary for a period in excess of five (5) consecutive working days, the employee shall be paid acting pay from the day they commenced to perform the duties of the higher classification in accordance with the next higher rate in the higher classification.
- Although it is agreed that the Company may post vacancies simultaneously internally and externally, the Company agrees to give primary consideration to internal candidates for a vacancy, subject to article 32.06.

Notwithstanding Article 32.01 above, the Company may hire qualified candidates who previously applied for a similar vacancy or new position provided that a competition was held during the previous twelve (12) months. The Company in these circumstances, is not required to post or advertise the vacancy or new position. Where the Company uses this provision, it shall notify the Local Union President where the vacancy or new position exists, ten (10) working days prior to filling the vacancy or new position.

31.06 Filling Posted Vacancies

In filling posted vacancies the selection shall be made based on skill, ability, experience, and relevant qualifications of the applicants. Where these factors are relatively equal, bargaining unit seniority shall be the governing factor provided the successful applicant, if any, is qualified to perform the available work within an appropriate familiarization period.

31.07 Promotion to Higher Rated Classification

An employee who is promoted to a higher classification within the bargaining unit will be placed in the range of the higher classification so that they shall receive no less an increase in wage rate than the equivalent of one step in the wage rate of their previous classification (provided that the employee does not exceed the wage rate of the classification to which they have been promoted). An employee will receive a new anniversary date. For clarity, promotion occurs when the incumbent of a position is assigned to another position in a classification with a higher maximum salary than the class of their former position.

- An applicant who is invited to attend an interview during their regular scheduled hours shall be granted time off with no loss of pay and with no loss of credits to attend the interview, provided that the time off does not unduly interfere with operating requirements.
- 31.09 The Company will forward to the Union President copies of all bargaining unit job postings and a list of the successful bargaining unit candidates on a monthly basis including employees in temporary positions.

31.10 Temporary and Posted Vacancies

- a) Employees in the bargaining unit selected to fill temporary vacancies will not be considered for other temporary positions while filling the temporary vacancy. Upon completion of the temporary vacancy, the bargaining unit employee will be returned to their former position.
- b) An employee selected as a result of a posted vacancy need not be considered for a further vacancy for a period of up to six (6) months from their date of selection.

ARTICLE 32 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

32.01 Hours of Work

The following provision designating regular hours on a daily shift and regular daily shifts over the schedule determined by the Company shall not be construed to be a guarantee of the hours of work to be performed on each shift or during each shift schedule.

The normal work day shall be composed of seven and one-half (7 1/2) hours, exclusive of mealtimes and the normal work week shall average thirty-seven and one-half hours (37 1/2) per week over the scheduling period determined by the Company. It is understood that at the change of shift there will

normally be additional time required for reporting which shall be considered to be part of the normal daily shift, for a period of up to fifteen (15) minutes duration. Should the reporting time extend beyond fifteen (15) minutes, however, the entire period shall be considered overtime for the purposes of payment under Article 33.03.

32.02 Rest Periods

Employees shall be entitled to relief periods during the shift on the basis of fifteen (15) minutes for each half (1/2) shift, subject to the exigencies of patient care.

32.03 Overtime

32.03.1 Overtime Definition

(a) Overtime shall be defined as being all hours worked in excess of the normal or standard work day or in excess of the normal or standard work week. The overtime rate shall be one-and-one-half (1 ½) times the regular straight time hourly rate of pay calculated to the nearest half-hour.

Where the Company and the Union agree, subject to the approval of the Ministry of Labour, other arrangements regarding hours of work may be entered into between parties on a local level with respect to shifts beyond the normal standard work day.

(b) In the assignment of overtime, the Company agrees to develop methods of distributing overtime that are fair and equitable after having ensured that all its operational requirements are met. Straight time hours will be offered to Part-time and casual staff before full-time employees shall be offered overtime. Full-time employees shall be offered overtime prior to the offer of overtime to the part-time or casual employees.

32.03.2 Overtime/Call Back Accumulation (full-time only)

Full time employees who perform authorized overtime work, shall have the option to receive compensating leave of one and one-half (1 1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked (rather than pay), at a time mutually agreed upon. Where an employee chooses this option, hours in excess of thirty-seven and one-half (37.5) hours in a calendar year will be automatically paid out at the appropriate rate. Compensating leave shall be paid at the rate it was earned. In addition, compensating leave accumulated in a calendar year which is not used before March 31 of the following year, shall be paid at the rate it was earned.

32.04 Missed Meal

(a) If an employee is authorized and directed to work, during the lunch break, they will be paid time and one-half (1½) their regular straight time hourly rate for all time worked in excess of their normal daily hours in the event they are unable to re-schedule their lunch period later on.

32.05 Days Off – Full Time Employees

There shall be a minimum of two (2) consecutive days off which shall be referred to as scheduled days off except that days off may be non-consecutive if agreed upon between the employee, and the Company.

ARTICLE 33 – COMPENSATION

33.01 New Classifications

When a new classification in the bargaining unit is established by the Company or the Company makes a substantial change in the job content of an existing classification which in reality causes such classification to become a new classification, the Company shall advise the Union of such new or changed classification and the rate of pay established. If requested, the Company agrees to meet with the Union to permit it to make representations with respect to the appropriate rate of pay providing any such meeting shall not delay the implementation of the new classification. Where the Union challenges the rate established by the Company and the matter is not resolved following any meeting with the Union, a grievance may be filed at Step No. 2 of the Grievance Procedure within seven (7) calendar days following any meeting. If the matter is not resolved in the Grievance Procedure, it may be referred to Arbitration in accordance with Article 8, it being understood that any Arbitrator shall be limited to establishing an appropriate rate.

Any change in the rate established by the Hospital either through meetings with the Union or by an Arbitrator shall be made retroactive to the time at which the new or changed classification was first filled.

33.02 Grid Progression - Full-Time Employees Only

Full-time employees will progress annually on the salary grid on their anniversary date unless on an unpaid leave of absence exceeding 30 days.

33.03 Grid Progression - Part-Time Employees Only

Part-time employees will accumulate service for purposes of progression on the salary grid, on the basis of one (1) year of service for each 1950 hours worked. Notwithstanding this provision, the calculation of service for purposes of progression on the salary grid will include service accrued during a pregnancy leave or parental leave on the basis of seniority accrual during such leaves.

ARTICLE 34 - PREMIUM PAYMENTS/TRANSPORTATION/MEAL ALLOWANCE

34.01 Shift Premium

- (a) An employee shall receive a shift premium of \$1.50 per hour for all hours worked between 5:00 pm and 7:00 am.
- (b) Notwithstanding the above, where an employee's hours of work normally fall within the 7:00 am and 5:00 pm, the employee will not be entitled to receive a shift premium for hours worked between 5:00 pm and 7:00 am.
- (c) Shift premium will not be paid to an employee who for mutually agreed upon reasons, works a shift for which he or she would otherwise be entitled to a shift premium.
- (d) The premium of one dollar and seventy-five cents per hour (\$1.75) shall be paid for all hours that commence on or after 2400 hours Friday and end on or before 2400 hours Sunday.

Shift premium will not form part of the employee's straight time hourly rate.

34.02 Meal Allowance

When an employee continues to work more than two hours of overtime immediately following their scheduled hours of work, they shall be reimbursed for the cost of one (1) meal to eight dollars (\$8.00) maximum, except where free meals are provided or where the employee is being compensated for meals on some other basis.

34.03 Call Back Pay

- a) An employee who is called to work after leaving the Company premises and outside of their regular scheduled hours, shall be paid a minimum of no less than four (4) hours' pay at time and one-half (1½) their regular straight time hourly rate for work performed. In the event that such four (4) hour period overlaps and extends into the employee's regular shift they will receive the four (4) hour guarantee payment at time and one half (1½) and their regular hourly rate for the remaining hours of their regular shift. Once on-site, should additional work be available, the employee may be asked to perform such work.
- b) Call-back pay shall cover all calls within the minimum four (4) hour period provided for under (a). If a second call takes place after four (4) hours have elapsed from the time of the first call, it shall be subject to the second call-back premium, but in no case shall an employee collect two call-back premiums within one such four (4) hour period, and to the extent that a call-back overlaps and extends into the hours of the employee's regular shift, (a) shall apply.

34.04 On Call Duty (Stand-by)

An employee required to standby and/or remain reasonably available for callback duty on other than regular scheduled hours shall be paid at the rate of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour of standby time. Where such standby falls on any of the designated holidays listed in the collective agreement, the employee shall be paid at the rate of three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) per hour of standby time. Hours worked for call-back or telephone consultation shall be deducted from hours for which the employee receives standby pay. However, an employee shall be entitled to a minimum of five dollars (\$5.00) for each eight hour period on standby even if called back to work.

Employees who are required to provide professional services over the telephone while on stand-by (without returning to the Company) shall be entitled to a minimum of fifteen (15) minutes pay at time and one-half (1 ½) regular straight time hourly rate, or equivalent time in lieu, per call, regardless of the duration of the call. Any additional time spent on the call over and above fifteen (15) minutes shall be compensated at the same rate but in minimum fifteen (15) minute increments. The employee will complete a record of calls on a form following the period of call. Any subsequent calls within the fifteen (15) minute minimum will not constitute a second telephone consultation.

34.05 Time Off Between Shifts (Shift Schedules)

Every reasonable effort shall be made to avoid scheduling the commencement of a shift within twelve (12) hours of the completion of the employee's previous shift provided however, that if an employee is required to work before twelve (12) hours have elapsed they shall be paid time and one half (1½) for those hours that fall within the twelve (12) hour period. It is understood that the term "shift" does not include any period of time in respect of which an employee is entitled to overtime payments or compensating leave in accordance with Article 32.03 (Overtime) or Article 34.03 (Call Back).

34.06 Change of Schedule

Shift schedules shall be posted not less than 15 days in advance and there shall be no change in the schedule after it has been posted unless notice is given to the employee forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the starting time of the shift as originally scheduled. If the employee concerned is not notified forty-eight (48) hours in advance they shall be paid time and one half (1½) for the first seven and one-half (7.5) hours worked on the changed shift provided that no premium shall be paid where the change of schedule is caused by events beyond the employer's control.

A shift may be changed without any premium or penalty if agreed upon between the employee and the Company.

Copies of all schedules shall be made available to the Union upon request.

34.07 Shift exchange

A request by an employee for an exchange of scheduled working hours must be submitted in writing, co-signed by the employee within the same work area willing to exchange shifts, prior to the shift affected. Such change initiated by the employee will not result in additional cost to the Company. All changes must be approved by the Manager or designate. Such request shall not be unreasonably denied.

34.08 Reporting pay

Where an employee reports for any scheduled shift and no work is available, they will be paid at least four (4) hours except when work is not available due to conditions beyond the control of the Company. This provision shall not apply whenever an employee has received not less than one (1) hour's prior notice not to report to work.

34.09 Personal vehicle usage

Employees using their own vehicles to travel on Company business shall be paid in accordance with Honeywell policy. No employee shall be required to transport a patient(s) in their own personal vehicle. The use of privately owned automobiles to carry out the Company business shall not be a condition of employment.

34.10 No Pyramiding

Premium payment (including both overtime and holiday premium payment) shall be calculated and paid under one provision of this Agreement only, even though hours worked may be premium payment hours under more than one provision. In such circumstances the highest premium will be applied. The provision of this clause will not negate any entitlement to shift premium, callback, standby, or weekend premium.

ARTICLE 35 - GENERAL

35.01 Printing of Collective Agreement

The parties shall share equally the cost of printing the Collective Agreement, and distribute sufficient copies to the employees. Both the Company's and OPSEU's logo will appear prominently.

- The Company shall supply tools and equipment for all facilities staff.
- Upon written request to Human Resources, an employee in the bargaining unit shall be provided with a copy of their current job description. This information shall be provided within five (5) working days of the request. Upon written request of the Union, the job description of any classification covered by this Collective Agreement shall be provided within five (5) working days.

ARTICLE 36 - MODIFIED WORK

All injured workers shall be treated in accordance with the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, The Ontario Human Rights Code, the Collective Agreement and other applicable legislation.

The Company, in consultation with the Employee and the Union will provide fair and equitable practices to accommodate employees who are ill, injured or permanently disabled.

To facilitate these programs, it is understood and agreed that provisions of the Collective Agreement may, where agreed, be varied.

ARTICLE 37 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

37.01 Leave Without Pay

An employee may request a leave of absence without pay and without accumulation of credits. Such leave shall not unreasonably denied.

37.02 Military Leave

An employee will be granted unpaid leave without loss of seniority in order to meet any obligations pertaining to the Canadian Military Reserve. The employee will give as much notice as reasonably possible. The Company reserves the right to request proof of service.

37.03 Educational Leave

(a) Where the Company directs the employee to take an educational course to upgrade or acquire new employment qualifications such employees shall not lose regular pay and shall have no loss of seniority and benefits because of necessary absence from work due to participation in such a course. The Company shall pay the registration and/or tuition costs associated with the course.

Where the Company directs the employee to take an educational course, a leave of absence of up to one (1) day shall be granted to allow employees to write exams. Employees shall advise the Company four (4) weeks in advance in writing of the time, place and approximate duration of the exam for which time off is being requested.

Should the employee not attend or not successfully complete the course, the employee will reimburse the employer all associated costs.

ARTICLE 38 - CONTRACTING OUT

- The Company shall not contract out any work usually performed by members of the bargaining unit if, as a result of such contracting out, a lay-off of any employees other than casual part-time employees results from such contracting out.
- Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may contract out work usually performed by members of the bargaining unit without such contracting-out constituting a breach of this provision if the Company provides in its commercial arrangement contracting out the work that the contractor to whom the work is contracted, and any subsequent such contractor agrees:
 - (1) to employ the employees thus displaced from the Company; and
 - (2) in doing so to stand, with respect to that work, in the place of the Company for the purposes of the Company's collective agreement with the Union, and to execute an agreement with the Union to that effect.

In order to ensure compliance with this provision, the Company agrees that it will withdraw the work from any contractor who has failed to meet the aforesaid terms of the contracting-out arrangement

<u>ARTICLE 39 - DURATION</u>

39.01 This Agreement shall continue in effect until the 31stday of March, 2017 and shall continue automatically thereafter for annual periods of one year each unless either party notifies the other in writing that it intends to amend or terminate this Agreement in accordance with the following:

Either party may notify the other within the period from ninety (90) days to sixty (60) days preceding the expiry date of this Agreement that it desires to amend or terminate this Agreement.

For Ontario Public Service Employees Union,	For Honeywell
David Chille	Alexanick
2 Let Hull	Hatie W
SHORLY FOR G. COLLIN	US. MARKERS
	MATE HIN
<u> </u>	

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #1

RE: Strike by a Third Party Protocol

Between

OPSEU 329 and the Company

The parties agree that in the event of a strike at Central North Corrections Centre (CNCC) whereby employees may possibly encounter a strike or picket line, the parties shall meet to develop a protocol to deal with such.

Signed at Penetanguishene, Ontario thi	is 154 day of April , 2015.
For Ontario Public Service Employees Union	For Honeywell
Strong Call	Ratie Wy
SHOUTER GULLINS	A Life Hour

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING #2

RE: Statutory Holidays

Between

OPSEU 329 and the Company

The parties agree that there will be no premium payments for Canada Day and the holidays designated in article 17.01 represent a greater right or benefit for the purposes of the Employment Standards Act.

For Ontario Public Service Employees Union	For Honeywell
David Chatte	· Hex Mille
a lik Hu	dati Wy
Blocky FOR G. COLUNS	B PARCORD
	- John Haus

SCHEDULE "A" - WAGES

Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2014, the Company will grant a general wage increase of 2% to employees.

Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2015, the Company will grant a general wage increase of 2% to employees.

Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2016, the Company will grant a general wage increase of 2% to employees.

	1			
Classification	Effective	Start	1 year	2 year
Building Operator 1	Current	\$22.57	\$23.01	\$23.68
	Apr 1/14	\$23.02	\$23.47	\$24.15
	Apr 1/15	\$23.48	\$23.94	\$24.64
	Apr 1/16	\$23.95	\$24.42	\$25.13
Building Operator 2	Current	\$24.27	\$25.03	\$26.07
	Apr 1/14	\$24.76	\$25.53	\$26.59
	Apr 1/15	\$25.25	\$26.04	\$27.12
	Apr 1/16	\$25.76	\$26.56	\$27.67
Electrician	Current	\$27.35	\$27.99	\$28.83
-	Apr 1/14	\$27.90	\$28.55	\$29.41
	Apr 1/15	\$28.45	\$29.12	\$29.99
	Apr 1/16	\$29.02	\$29.70	\$30.59
Plumber	Current	\$27.35	\$27.99	\$28.83
	Apr 1/14	\$27.90	\$28.55	\$29.41
	Apr 1/15	\$28.45	\$29,12	\$29.99
	Apr 1/16	\$29.02	\$29.70	\$30.59